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1. Gretchen wrote a letter to her nephew, Milo, saying “I am giving you the Tang lion that sits on my mantel. I’m going to keep it until my death, but I’m giving it to you now so you can have it after I’m gone.” She handed the letter to Maura who later handed it over to Milo.

a. The letter could not effectuate a gift because there is no expression of in praesenti donative intent.

b. The letter could not effectuate a completed gift until Milo took actual possession of the Tang lion.

c. The letter appears to be an attempt at a testamentary gift that fails, due to non-compliance with the Statute of Wills.

d. The letter appears to create a future interest in Milo, with delivery of the letter itself satisfying the delivery requirement for a completed gift.

2. Reanswer the previous question.

3. Fillmore owned a farm bordered on 2 sides by state forest preserve lands. On the third side was land held by Quinn, who had leased it from the state 25 years ago but had never used it. For over 12 years, Fillmore has been planting corn and other crops on a section of the Quinn parcel, taking the harvest for himself. Last year, Quinn bought the leased parcel from the state and now is suing Fillmore for trespass and a declaration confirming ownership in Quinn.   

a. In most states Fillmore would lose because Quinn bought the land only last year, and it does not matter for this purpose whom he bought it from.

b. In many states Fillmore would lose because Quinn bought the land from the state only last year. 

c. Both of the above.

d. There is no legal reason to doubt that Fillmore ought to win because he rather clearly, under the almost universal rule, has acquired a ripened title by adverse possession. 

4. Reanswer the previous question.

5. In the preceding question suppose that, under local law, Fillmore could successfully claim a ripened title by adverse possession based on these facts. In that case, Quinn: 

a. Ought still to be able to recover in a trespass action against Fillmore for the time that Fillmore unlawfully possessed in violation of Quinn’s rights.

b. Ought still to be able to recover trespass damages from Fillmore for the time before the title ripened in Fillmore.

c. Would not be able to either recover damages in trespass or mesne profits from Fillmore.

d. Would not be able to recover damages in trespass from Fillmore, but he should be able to recover mesne profits.

6. Reanswer the previous question.

Facts for Conrad Morris questions. Conrad Morris has a piece of land with a prime trout stream running through it. For the past several years Morris has allowed members of the public to fish on his property, charging a daily entrance fee of $25. On a good day he’ll get as many 30-40 customers. Recently his upstream neighbor, Drexel, opened a canoe rental business. Weekend boaters launch from Drexel’s property and float their way through Morris’s land—something which greatly annoys the fisherman. The boaters also allegedly scare the fish, making them less likely to bite. Morris is now getting fewer customers and he wants to bring trespass actions against the canoeists that float through his property.

7. The first thought Morris had was that he could keep the canoeists out because they are trespassing. When he asked his lawyer about this, the lawyer should have advised.

a. If the stream is navigable in fact then the canoeists would not be considered trespassers for simply navigating along the stream through Morris’s land. 

b. If the stream were navigable in fact, the canoeists would be considered trespassers if Morris owned the bed and both banks of the stream and the canoeists passed though his “airspace.”

c. Even if Morris owned the bed and banks of the stream, the canoeists could not be considered trespassers if they merely floated through Morris’s land, provided they never touched the bed or banks of the stream.

d. It is unlikely that a court would deem the stream to be “navigable” in fact if the only boats that could float on it were canoes and other small recreational vessels.

8. Reanswer the previous question.

9. Morris has concluded that it is impractical to sue the individual canoeists for trespass. He therefore is considering an action against Drexel. 

a. He probably would win a lawsuit against Drexel since Drexel’s actions, giving the canoeists access to the stream, are ruining Morris’s ability to make a livelihood in a lawful trade or business that he has established.

b. He probably would win a lawsuit against Drexel since Morris started making commercial use of the stream first, before Drexel commenced making the use that is incompatible with Morris’s use.

c. He probably would not win a lawsuit against Drexel since the latter’s actions are neither malicious nor violent, and Drexel has as much right to engage in his trade or business as Morris does in his.

d. He probably would not win a lawsuit against Drexel because the latter, as upstream owner, has a better right to the fish anyway.

10. Reanswer the previous question.

11. Last week Morris discovered that some of canoeists coming down the stream were pulling out on lands belonging to Morris and fishing from the banks of the stream, all without permission from Morris. Fishing from the bank of the stream is not considered a part of “navigation” under local law. Any fish that these canoeists catch while sitting without permission on Morris’s land would belong to (choose the best answer):

a. The person who caught them because fish are ferae naturae.

b. The person who caught them because the rule of capture applies.

c. To Morris under the doctrine of ratione soli.

d. To Morris because he owns and possesses the fish living in the stream on his land and, therefore, they remain his property after they are caught. 

e. To Morris under the doctrine of animus revertendi.

12. Reanswer the previous question.

13. In an effort to increase his business, Morris stocked his stretch of the stream with some trout from a cave dwelling sub-species that are docile, not frightened by people or canoes, and have a particular appetite for hand-tied artificial flies. These fish are otherwise just like other wild trout occurring locally except for their unmistakable bright pink color. Some of these pink trout swam up to Drexel’s land where they were caught by canoe customers sitting on Drexel’s stream bank. Who probably has the better claim to possess the pink trout caught by the canoeists?

a. The canoeists who caught them because the fish had regained their natural liberty and therefore were “fair game” for anyone to catch.

b. Morris based on animus revertendi

c. Morris based on ratione soli.

d. Morris because the pink trout would be analytically analogous to a branded fox that escapes back to the woods or a hippo that escapes in Los Angeles.

14. Reanswer the previous question.

15. The week before law school orientation, Gerald Bongo went to see a major league baseball game. He got a seat on the first base line. There was a wild swing at an errant pitch during the fourth inning, and the resulting foul ball headed straight toward Bongo. Instantly Bongo stood up, and the ball flew right between his knees and wedged itself between the back and  bottom of his seat. Bongo swiveled around to grab the ball but he’d barely touched it when a person from two rows further down leapt up over the seatbacks and crashed into him. As Bongo was trying to regain his balance, the guy who’d been sitting directly behind him, in the next row back, grabbed the ball and ran. As between Bongo and the guy who ran off with the ball:

a. Bongo probably has the better legal claim to the ball because the batter hit it straight to him.

b. Bongo probably has the better claim to the ball because he was first to touch it.

c. The guy who ran off with the ball probably has the better claim to the ball because he was the first to have clear and unambiguous dominion and control over it.

d. Neither Bongo nor the guy who ran off with the ball would totally prevail but rather, in accordance with the traditional rules on original acquisition, the ball would be sold and the proceeds split between them

16. Reanswer the previous question.

17. Marie Fonten and Hamlin Drabor are next-door neighbors on two residential lots. Fonten’s house is about one foot from the property line. As a result, there is no practical way for Fonten to work on or maintain the siding on the house except by entering onto Drabor’s property or, at least, going into the airspace. Recently a plumbing contractor inside Fonten’s house accidentally broke through the outer wall. Fonten has asked Drabor to let the contractor’s people repair the outside but he has refused, citing the flowerbeds that Fonten’s dog had dug up during the prior summer. There is now fairly deep snow, so it’s unlikely that the contractor’s personnel would actually touch or disturb the ground on Drabor’s side of the line. In fact, the contractor has even offered to do the necessary work from scaffolding let down from Fonten’s roof, so the ground outside wouldn’t be touched at all. But the scaffolding would unavoidably hang a 10-15 inches across the property line.

a. Drabor can legitimately refuse to allow the requested ground-level entries on his side of the property line.

b. Drabor would have a legal right to prevent the use of the hanging scaffolding, even if nothing actually touches the ground on his side of the line.

c. Both of the above.

d. None of the above. As long as the contractor’s personnel don’t actually touch or disturb the ground on Drabor’s side of the line, Drabor has no legitimate grounds to object

18. Reanswer the previous question.

19. One day Oren Callaway noticed that an oil derrick had been erected on the farm next to his. He reasons that, if they’re taking oil from the land next door, some of that oil might be coming from beneath his own land. 

a. As owner of the surface, Oren has absolute ownership of oil deposits under his land in the same way as he would have ownership of coal or gravel that might be down there, so he’d be entitled to any of “his” oil that that neighbor pumps up.

b. The general rule is that, if a person puts his property on or under another’s land without permission, the objects or things so placed become the property of the landowner—and that includes things like oil and natural gas.

c. Both of the above.

d. Many courts would treat oil deposits discovered in the ground as they would treat ferae naturae in their natural habitat, holding that ownership belongs to the first captor—i.e., in this case, Oren’s neighbor.

20. Reanswer the previous question.

Facts for Edwin questions. Edwin Norbert has the farm next to Oren Calloway’s farm from the preceding question. Edwin has noticed that, since the oil operations began on the neighboring farm, his own water wells are producing less and less water. It turns out that the oil extraction company has found it necessary to remove water from the ground in order to pump from the oil deposits. It appears also that the underground waters in the area are somehow interconnected.

21. Edwin is forced to go to considerable expense to deepen the water wells that he needs to supply his livestock.

a. The underground water beneath Edwin’s land is, presumptively, percolating (until shown to be otherwise).

b. The underground water beneath Edwin’s land is, presumed to be flowing in subterranean streams.

c. The underground water beneath Edwin’s land is owned absolutely by Edwin, just like underground gravel, coal or other valuable materials .

d. None of the above.

22. Reanswer the previous question.

23. Edwin and his neighbor get into litigation over the neighbor’s right to authorize the oil extraction company deal with the underground water as it does.

a. The neighbor would have an absolute right to use or remove the water from under his land under the “English” rule, which is applied in England but not in the United States.

b. The neighbor would have an absolute right to use or remove the water from under his land under the “American” rule.

c. The neighbor would have a right under the “American” rule to use or remove underground water as may be necessary for reasonable use of his land, including in connection with its oil extraction operations.

d. The neighbor would have the right under the “American” rule to use or remove underground water as reasonably necessary for oil pumping operations, but the neighbor would have to compensate Edwin for any resulting loss to him.

24. Reanswer the previous question.

25. Because of the plight of Edwin and others similarly situated, the legislature recently adopted a law that requires miners and petroleum drillers to compensate their neighbors for damage to existing wells that results when underground waters are removed. No such compensation requirement had previously existed under the state’s common law:

a. The new law would probably amount to a compensible taking for all mining and drilling operators whose lands became substantially less profitable due to the new compensation requirement.

b. The new law would probably amount to a compensible taking for all mining and drilling operators whose lands lost all economic value due to the new compensation requirement.

c. Both of the above.

d. It would be fully within the power of the legislature to make such a change in the common law, and doing so would not be treated as a compensible taking—whatever might be the effects on miners and drillers.

26. Reanswer the previous question.   

27. Canton Frobe raises chickens and other poultry in his backyard, which is in an upscale residential neighborhood. His livestock can be noisy and irritate his neighbors. Recently the city council adopted a new ordinance declaring it to be a nuisance for residential owners keep animals other than traditional pets, such as dogs, cats and hamsters. Under the takings clause in the fifth amendment:

a. The new ordinance would be unconstitutional because it purports to create a new kind of nuisance not recognized under the common law.

b. Frobe would be entitled to compensation in the event he could show that the ordinance deprives him of a substantial portion of the value or use of his land.  

c. Government regulations which, like this one, reduce the value of property, generally are not valid unless they provide for compensation to affected owners.

d. Essentially, the city council had no alternative in this situation but to favor one class of owners over another, or vice versa, and it is not unconstitutional for the council to make the choice.

28. Reanswer the previous question.

29. While shopping at a supermarket Lizzie Portabella noticed a gold charm nestled among the tomatoes in the produce section. It had apparently become detached from a charm bracelet. Lizzie notified the store manager who suggested that he should “hold on to the charm in case its owner comes back for it.” Lizzie is dubious. Before parting with the charm, she calls you up on her cell phone and asks your advice. On the assumption that nobody would likely place a gold charm in the tomato display on purpose:

a. Lizzie would probably be deemed entitled to keep the charm in a state that makes the distinction between lost and mislaid property.

b. Lizzie would probably be deemed entitled to keep the charm in a state that does not make the distinction between lost and mislaid property.

c. Both of the above.

d. The supermarket would probably be deemed entitled to keep the charm whether or not the state makes the distinction between lost and mislaid property.

30. Reanswer the previous question.

31. As Lizzie got in her car in the supermarket parking lot, she spotted a diamond ear stud lying on the ground. She picked it up and put it in her purse. Later that day she showed the stud to a jeweler for an appraisal. Once the jeweler had the stud in his hand, he refused to return it to Lizzie. 

a. Lizzie would have an action in replevin against the jeweler.

b. Lizzie would have an action in trover against the jeweler.

c. As against the jeweler Lizzie’s possession would be as good as actual title

.

d. All of the above.

32. Reanswer the previous question.

33. Suppose that Lizzie found another diamond stud while a guest in the home of her friend Madge. It happened when, at Madge’s request, Lizzie was getting a deck of cards from the drawer of a built-in cabinet. The drawer had jammed and then, when it finally gave way, the diamond stud popped out. In the excitement Madge initially exclaimed that she had “no idea how a diamond like that could have gotten there” After coming to her senses, however,  Madge laid claim to the stud on the ground that it was found on her property.  Ignoring the distinction between lost and mislaid property.

a. Madge, as owner of the locus in quo, would probably have the better claim to the stud in a state that follows the English rule on rights to found property.

b. Madge, as owner of the locus in quo, would probably have the better claim to the stud in a state that follows the American rule on rights to found property.

c. Madge, as owner of the locus in quo, would probably have the better claim to the stud under either the English rule or the American rule on rights to found property.

d. Lizzie, as the finder, would probably have the better claim to the stud under either the English rule or the American rule on rights to found property.

34. Reanswer the previous question.

35. The dispute between Lizzie and Madge over the diamond stud in the previous question was reported in the local newspaper. The previous owner of Madge’s house, from whom Madge had purchased, saw these reports and showed up to assert a claim to the stud. The prior owner could not, however, correctly describe the stud, and it was apparent it had not been hers—although from all indications the stud had apparently been in the house during the time when the prior owner lived there. On these facts, in a state that counts “unconscious” possession as possession: 

a. It looks like the prior owner probably would have a better claim to the stud because, as prior owner of the house, she became the true owner of the stud.

b. It looks like the prior owner probably would have a better claim to the stud as the earlier known possessor of the stud.

c. It looks like Madge would probably have a better claim to the stud because rights to the stud would have been normally considered included as part of the sale of the house in which it was contained.

d. Lizzie would have the better claim to the stud.

36. Reanswer the previous question.

Facts for Wilbur-Museum questions. Wilbur bought an antique art book for $2500 from a dealer near the Met Museum. Happy with his purchase, he went across the street to the museum for a stroll through the Impressionist galleries. At the museum’s main door he was pointed toward the checkroom and told he’d have to check his parcel, which was an ordinary paper bag containing the newly acquired book. While Wilbur he was looking at the Sisleys  and Renoirs, a sudden cloudburst occurred outside and, due to a leak in the roof over the checkroom, water leaked in and damaged the book.

37. Wilbur is contemplating a legal action against the museum. 

a. The museum would be liable to Wilbur for the loss.

b. The museum would be liable to Wilbur for the loss only if it was negligent in caring for the book..

c. The museum could not be held liable to Wilbur for the loss because the loss was caused by the weather, not by the museum personnel.

d. The museum could not be held liable to Wilbur for the loss because it never agreed to  be liable for harms to the book.

38. Reanswer the previous question.

39. In order for Wilbur to make a prima facie case in his action against the museum:

a. Wilbur would normally have to present evidence that the museum was negligent, just as in any other tort action for failure to use ordinary care.

b. Negligence would be presumed and the court normally would not permit evidence one way or the other on the negligence issue.

c. Wilbur would not have to prove that the museum was negligent because, as bailee, the museum was obliged to return the book to Wilbur in the same condition that it received it.

d. Normally Wilbur could make out a prima facie case by simply showing that there was a bailment and that the bailee failed to return the book in the same condition that it received it.

40. Reanswer the previous question.

41. Suppose that the paper bag containing the book was folded shut and firmly bound with wrapping string. The museum objects to Wilbur’s effort to hold it liable for the $2500 value of the book. Under the better reasoning:

a. The museum should not be held liable for the $2500 value of the book because, not knowing what was in the wrapped package, it never became a “bailee” of the book.

b. The museum became bailee of the book, but it cannot be held liable for the $2500 value of the book because Wilbur did not disclose the value at the time of the bailment.

c. The museum can be held liable as bailee for the $2500 value of the book if the museum failed to use the amount and kind of care that an ordinarily prudent person would have exercised given the apparent value (to a reasonable person) of the bailed parcel.

d. The museum can be held liable as bailee if it failed to use the amount and kind of care that an ordinarily prudent person would have exercised, but its liability would be limited to the apparent value (to a reasonable person) of the bailed parcel.

42. Reanswer the previous question.

43. Suppose that Wilbur paid an entrance fee to get into the museum but no separate charge to leave his book parcel at the checkroom.

a. The bailment would be considered a gratuitous bailment which, in some jurisdictions, would place the museum under a heightened duty of care.

b. The bailment would be considered a gratuitous bailment which, in some jurisdictions, would place the museum under a reduced duty of care.

c. The bailment would be considered one for the reciprocal benefit of the parties, and the museum would be required to use ordinary care.

d. The bailment would be considered one for hire, and the museum would be under no particular duty of care, unless otherwise agreed.

44. Reanswer the previous question.

45. Suppose that, in the confusion and commotion of the roof leak, one of the checkroom employees mistakenly delivered the parcel containing Wilbur’s book to another patron, Pratt, who’d been waiting in line to retrieve a similar (but much less valuable) item at the checkroom. 

a. The museum would be absolutely liable to Wilbur for the value of the book, on the ground of misdelivery.

b. The museum would have an action to recover possession of the book from Pratt.

c. The museum would have an action to recover the value of the book from Pratt.

d. All of the above.

46. Reanswer the previous question.

47. Last fall, Taylor bought a summer home on a lake near the charming town of Artsyville. Included in the sale were several large lawn sculptures designed to blend in with the landscape. During the immediately following winter Taylor did not occupy the house and, indeed, lived 400 miles away. Not recognizing the value of the sculptures, a group of local teenagers entered on Taylor’s land and set fire to them, causing their destruction. 

a. Taylor could recover damages in trespass only if he had actual or constructive possession of property at the time the local teenagers came in and destroyed the sculptures.

b. Under the modern rule, it is no longer necessary for a landowner to have possession in order to maintain an action in trespass.

c. Taylor could recover damages in trespass against the teenagers even if his summer home was occupied by an adverse possessor at the time the sculptures were destroyed.

.

d. Taylor could not recover damages in trespass against the teenagers unless he had posted his property with “No trespassing” signs, or the like.

48. Reanswer the previous question.

49. Suppose in the preceding question that Taylor was staying overnight in his new house at the time the sculptures were destroyed. In defense of the local teenagers, their lawyer wants to bring in evidence that Taylor’s chain of title contains a defective deed, with the implication that Taylor is not in fact the owner of the premises.

a. In jurisdictions that apply the Winkfield principle to real property, the court would not allow the teenagers’ evidence of a defective deed to defeat Taylor’s claim.

b. In some jurisdictions, which do not fully apply the Winkfield principle to real property, a court might allow the teenagers to introduce the evidence of a defective deed as a basis for reducing that amount that Taylor can recover from them.

c. Both of the above.

d. In jurisdictions that apply the Winkfield principle to real property, the court would allow the teenagers to introduce the evidence of a defective deed as a complete defense to Taylor’s claim.

50. Reanswer the previous question.

51. Rachael on her deathbed handed a ring to Maura saying: “This is the engagement ring that your grandfather gave to me. I want you to have it.” Maura took the ring and said thank you. If a gift resulted from this interchange:

a. It would have been presumptively a gift causa mortis.

b. It would have been presumptively a gift inter vivos. 

c. It would have been presumptively a testamentary gift. 

d. It would have presumptively been irrevocable since no intention to revoke was mentioned.

52. Reanswer the previous question.

53. Rachael was on her deathbed when said to Maura: “I want you to have the 1000 shares of Microsoft stock that I’ve been keeping for a rainy day. Here’s the key to the locked box where the stock certificates are located. Go get the stock as soon as you can. I don’t want it to go in my estate.” Shortly afterwards Rachael passed away;

a. Rachael’s estate would probably be held entitled to the stock if the “locked box” was in the same room as Rachael and Maura, and Maura did not retrieve the stock before Rachael’s death.

b. Maura would probably be held entitled to the stock if the “locked box” was a distant safe deposit box at a bank, even if Maura did not go retrieve the stock before Rachael’s death.

c. Both of the above.

d. Maura would have a strong case for the stock irrespective of where the “locked box” was located or whether Maura went to retrieve the stock before Rachael’s death.

54. Reanswer the previous question.

55. While Linda was listening to CDs with her friend, Clara, it occurred to Linda how much her brother liked Aerosmith. When Linda mentioned this, Clara responded that the CD was no longer available, but that she’d be willing to give it to Linda’s brother. She handed it to Linda saying: “Here, I don’t need it. He can have it.” Before Linda got home, however, her cell phone rang and it was Clara, saying she’d changed her mind and that she wanted to cash in on the CD by selling it on Ebay.

a. Linda’s brother would be the owner of the CD if Linda were deemed agent for Clara.

b. Linda’s brother would be the owner of the CD if Linda were agent for her brother.

c. Linda’s brother would be the owner of the CD irrespective of whom Linda were deemed to be “agent” for.

d. There could be no completed gift on these facts until the CD was actually delivered to Linda’s brother.

56. Reanswer the previous question.

57. The feudal transaction of “subinfeudation” is mostly closely approximated in modern times:

a. When the owner of a home sells and conveys a fee simple absolute to a new owner.

b. When a tenant under a lease assigns the lease to a new tenant, or assignee.

c. When a tenant under a lease sublets the premises to a new tenant, or subtenant.

d. When a licensee engages in conduct that exceeds the scope of the license.

58. Reanswer the previous question.

59. In 1995 the City of Farnsworth conveyed a tract of land at a bargain price to Magnor Corporation. The deed stated that the purpose of the conveyance was “so that the grantee can establish and maintain its corporate headquarters in Farnsworth and contribute to employment in this city.” Despite this language of the deed, all that Magnor ever did was open a smallish branch office, and now it has put the land on the market. The City of Farnsworth has commenced an action to get the land back. 

a. In some states it will count against the city that the deed did not contain express language of reverter or re-entry.

b. Under the general rule courts will favor a construction of fee simple determinable or fee simple on condition subsequent when the deed states that the conveyance was made for a definite purpose.

c. Both of the above.

d. In most states the conveyance would be given an interpretation under which nothing short of a full corporate headquarters would satisfy the requirements for Magnor to retain the land.

60. Reanswer the previous question.

61. Randall conveyed Greenacre to Castleton “reserving a life a estate to my wife, Mary.” 

a. Under the traditional rule, the life estate to Mary would be void under the rule that an interest in land cannot be reserved in a stranger.

b. Under some modern authority, Castleton would not be permitted to take possession until after the death of Mary.

c. Both of the above. 

d. None of the above. Castleton’s interest would fail under the general rule that “courts abhor forfeitures.”

62. Reanswer the previous question.

63. Sandra owns a house and lot that abuts in the back on a lot owned by Bob. At the back of Bob’s lot is a large garage, almost as wide as his lot. Because the garage is set back 5 feet from the legal property line, there is a 5’ wide strip of Bob’s property behind the garage. For many years, Sandra actively occupied and used the 5 foot strip of Bob’s lot as though it were her own.

a. If Sandra has adversely possessed the 5 foot strip long enough, she may have acquired a ripened title to it by original acquisition.
b. Due to Sandra’s occupancy and use of the strip, Bob’s ownership may have been transferred to Sandra.
c. Both of the above.

d. Bob has nothing to worry about as long as he holds a valid deed showing that he is the legal owner of the 5 foot strip.
64. Reanswer the previous question.

65. One of the main purposes of adverse possession law is to: 

a. Make it possible for people with little money  to acquire land that is not being productively utilized by the technical owner.

b. To protect expectations based on longstanding patterns of land occupation and use.

c. To prevent legitimate ownership claims to land from being cut off due to the mere passage of time.

d. All of the above.

66. Reanswer the previous question.

67. Many years ago Rick donated a corner of his farm to the Lemon Township School District for construction of an elementary school. Many years after the school was completed, the District built a small shed near the edge of its property. Unbeknownst to either the District or Rick, this shed was actually on Rick’s side of the property line. When the mistake was finally noticed, more than 11 years later, the District apologized to Rick and moved the shed over to its own side of the line. But three years after that, the District (under a new board) decided to reclaim the area where the shed was originally located. Rick objects.  

a. The District cannot reclaim the area because it has relinquished, back to Rick, whatever title it might have acquired by adverse possession.
b. The District cannot reclaim the area because it has terminated its adverse possession by removing the shed and letting Rick retake possession of the land.
c. The District cannot reclaim the area because it has abandoned the area.
d. The District can probably reclaim possession of the area.
68. Reanswer the previous question.

69. In the preceding question, which is the strongest argument against allowing the District to reclaim the area where the shed originally was located (at least in some jurisdictions)?

a. The possession by the District was not open and notorious.

b. The possession by the District has not been continuous.

c. The possession by the District was not hostile.

d. The possession by the District was not actual and exclusive.

70. Reanswer the previous question.

71. As an investment, Gorman bought a house and 25 acres near Compton Lake. A few months later Gorman leased this property out to Stennis, for a 12-year term.  Almost immediately thereafter Fillmore fenced in and planted crops on a portion of the 25 acres, and he continued this use and occupancy for many years. After ten years of thus adversely possessing the land, Fillmore could acquire a ripened title:

a. But the title thus acquired would only be good against Stennis.

b. But the title thus acquired would only give him a right to possession for 2 additional years.

c. Both of the above.

d. That would be good against both Gorman and Stennis.

72. Reanswer the previous question.

73. In 1998 Foster entered into adverse possession of Greenacre, a parcel owned by DeVere who was 16 years old at the time. Assume for this question that the limitations period on ejectment is 21 years and the statute of limitations has a disability clause like the one we studied in class. Foster’s title would ripen:

a. In 2019.

b. In 2029.

c. In 2010.

d. In 2013.

74. Reanswer the previous question.

75. Ballydales Department Store had a large parking lot. At the back corner of the lot Ballydales allowed a charity, Clothes-for-the-Unclad, to maintain a small collection box for garments donated to the needy. This arrangement continued on an informal basis for over 21 years. Then Megabucks Enterprises, a national chain, bought out Ballydales. Megabucks wants Clothes-for-the-Unclad to remove its collection box. The charity is represented pro bono by Jane Goodhardt. She wants to claim that Clothes-for-the-Unclad has acquired a ripened title to use the location.

a. Clothes-for-the-Unclad probably does not have a ripened title because, as a licensee, its use was permissive and in subordination to Ballydales.
b. Clothes-for-the-Unclad probably does not have a ripened title because, as a licensee, its use was not hostile and under claim of right.
c. Both of the above.

d. None of the above. Clothes-for-the-Unclad probably has a ripened title after its 21 years of uninterrupted use of the location.
76. Reanswer the previous question.

77. The rule that says no ripened title is acquired by persons who possess others’ land due to an “honest mistake”: 

a. Better serves to protect expectations based on longstanding patterns of land occupation and use.

b. Flows naturally from the statute-of-limitations basis for the acquisition of title by adverse possession.

c. Tends to be better suited to clearing up or curing title “defects” that might exist due to problems in the old records and conveyancing documents.

d. Is based on a specific but not unanimously held notion of the concept of “hostile and under claim of right.” 

78. Reanswer the previous question.

79. O conveyed “to A for life and then to B’s first child to reach age 25.” B has one child, X, age 2.  Shortly thereafter, B had a second child, Y. Under the traditional rule against perpetuities (pick the best answer): 

a. The future interest is valid, and X can serve as the life in being. 

b. The future interest is valid, and either X or Y can serve as the life in being.

c. The future interest is void.

d. The future interest would be void even if the last part of the conveyance wording had read “to B’s first child now alive to reach age 25.”

80. Reanswer the previous question.

81. The purpose of the rule against perpetuities is to:

a. Prevent the creation of potentially perpetual interests in land.

b. To place limits on intergenerational transfers of wealth and, therefore, the rule is not applied to commercial transactions.

c. To prevent people from avoiding estate taxes.

d. To help assure that the intentions of transferors are carried out.

e. None of the above.

82. Reanswer the previous question.

83. The City of O conveyed “to Gray Bell Corporation, its successors and assigns so long as the land is used for a manufacturing plant …” There would be a perpetuities problem if  the words of conveyance concluded (after the “…”):

a. “and if the land ceases to be so used it will revert to the grantor.”

b. “and if the land ceases to be so used, it shall go to C and his heirs.”

c. “but if it ceases to be so used then the grantor may re-enter as of its previous estate.”

d. All of the above.

84. Reanswer the previous question.

85. Tompkins lived in a blue house with his housekeeper, Marge. At his death his will stated: “I hereby devise and bequeath my house to Marge P. as long as she lives there and pays the taxes and insurance. Thereafter it shall go to my nephew, Howard K.” 

a. It would be correct to say that the will bequeathed a remainder to Howard.

b. Marge probably received a license under the will.

c. Marge probably received a determinable life estate under the will.

d. Marge probably received a fee simple determinable under the will.

86. Reanswer the previous question.

87. Assume again that Tompkins lived in a house with Marge and, shortly before his death, he signed and delivered a deed that conveyed the house “to my nephew, Howard K, subject to a life estate to my devoted housekeeper, Marge.” Assume that, under the law in the jurisdiction, this conveyance created a life estate in Marge. If a lightning bolt struck the house causing some minor (non-structural) damage to the roof:

a. Neither Marge nor Howard would ordinarily be legally required to fix the damage to the roof, though it would obviously be in Marge’s interest, as the current occupant, to do so.

b. Marge and Howard would ordinarily be required to share the cost of fixing the roof in proportion to the relative values of their respective interests in the property. 

c. Marge could ordinarily require Howard, as the holder of the permanent interest, to fix the damage to the roof. 

d. Howard, as the holder of the future interest, could ordinarily hold Marge liable for failure to fix the damage to the roof.

88. Reanswer the previous question.

89. A primary impact of the Statute of Uses was:

a. To abolish the common law of trusts.

b. To abolish the common law of “uses.”.

c. To authorize and allow the creation of “uses.”

d. To convert equitable springing and shifting interests into legal executory interests, making it possible create the latter for the first time..

90. Reanswer the previous question.

Facts for Baden-Rhonda questions: On February 1 2008, Baden leased Tumbledowns to Rhonda. The agreed term was 5 years. The lease created the usual dual relationship of landlord and tenant. 

91. Rhonda entered into possession even though neither she nor Baden had signed the lease that Baden had prepared.  However, the local Statute of Frauds contains an exception for leases that are not “for more than one year.” On February 2, 2008:

a. Rhonda would have a right to possess until February 1 2013.

b. Rhonda would have a right to possess until February 1 2009.

c. Rhonda would have a tenancy at will.

d. The invalid lease would be considered a periodic tenancy from year to year.

92. Reanswer the previous question.

93. Suppose in the preceding question that a few months later, on May 5, 2008, Baden got a better offer for Tumbledowns. Even though Rhonda had been paying the rent on time, Baden wanted her out. If the court determines that Rhonda had a periodic tenancy from month to month, then the earliest date (after May 5) as of which Baden could terminate her tenancy would be:

a. June 30, 2008.

b. May 31, 2008.

c. June 5, 2008.

d. July 5, 2008.

94. Reanswer the previous question.

95. Now assume that Baden and Rhonda both signed a written 5-year lease for Tumbledowns. A tree limb struck the house on the property causing some minor (non-structural) damage to the roof:

a. Under the traditional common-law rule, Baden, as the holder of the future interest, could ordinarily hold Rhonda liable for failure to fix the damage (unless the lease provided otherwise).

b. Under the modern rule, Rhonda could probably hold Baden liable for failure to fix the damage, under the implied warranty of habitability.

c. Even if the lease contained a contractual provision requiring Baden to repair this sort of damage, that would not, under the traditional common law rule, automatically give Rhonda a right to withhold rent if Baden breached by failing to repair.

d. All of the above.

96. Reanswer the previous question.

97. Now assume again that Baden and Rhonda both signed a written 5-year lease for Tumbledowns and that a tree limb struck the house on the property causing some minor (non-structural) damage to the roof. Although the lease contained a contractual provision requiring Baden to keep the house “in good repair,” Baden is slow about fixing the damage and still hasn’t done so. Under the traditional rule:

a. Rhonda would always have the option of moving out, in which case her obligation to pay rent would be extinguished.

b. Rhonda may have the option of moving out and having her rent obligation extinguished, but only if the damage from the falling tree limb rendered the premises untenantable.

c. Rhonda would have the option of moving out, but under no circumstances would doing so extinguish her obligation to pay further rent.

.

d. Even if Rhonda retains full possession of the premises, she could still claim that Baden’s failure constituted a constructive eviction.

.

98. Reanswer the previous question.

99. Again assume that Baden and Rhonda both signed a written 5-year lease for Tumbledowns and that, after possessing the premises for nearly 2 years, Rhonda received a promotion at work requiring her to move to a distant city. One of her co-workers, Leonora, is willing to take over the premises. Rhonda and Leonora signed a document called a “sublease” under which Rhonda “hereby sublets my apartment to Leonora for the rest of my 5-year term.” Rhonda moved out and Leonora moved in. As a result (under the traditional rules):

a. A new landlord-tenant relation arose between Rhonda and Leonora, as subtenant.

b. Leonora took Rhonda’s place in the original landlord-tenant relationship. 

c. Rhonda and Leonora are now both tenants of Baden, one as prime tenant and the other as subtenant.

d. Rhonda is still in both privity of estate and privity of contract with Baden.

100. Reanswer the previous question.

101. In preceding question, if Rhonda wanted to sublease the premises to Leonora, she could have (pick the approach that would work in all or virtually all states):

a. Reserved a reversion of at least one day.

b. Provided for a right of entry in case of a breach by Leonora.

c. Both of the above.

d. Simply done exactly what she did, viz. sign a “sublease” under which she “hereby sublets my apartment to Leonora for the rest of my 5-year term.”

102. Reanswer the previous question.

103. Assume again that Baden and Rhonda signed a written 5-year lease for Tumbledowns. A year or so later, Rhonda assigned the lease to Leonora. After Leonora occupied the premises for a while, paying the rent to Baden, she simply abandoned possession without justification and stopped paying rent. This occurred nearly two years before the agreed lease term was to end.

a. Leonora would remain liable to Baden for rent if she assumed the lease.

b. Rhonda would remain liable for rent to Baden irrespective of whether Leonora assumed the lease.

c. Under the usual rule Baden would have two people to whom he could look for the payment of rent, though he could have only one recovery.

d. All of the above.

104. Reanswer the previous question.

105. Assume again that Baden and Rhonda signed a written 5-year lease for Tumbledowns. The lease created the usual dual relationship of landlord and tenant. A year or so into the lease, Rhonda assigned the lease to Leonora. After Leonora occupied the premises for a while, she stopped paying rent (though she remained in possession). If Baden obtained a judgment for rent from Rhonda:

a. Rhonda should be able to have the judgment reversed on appeal.

b. Rhonda should be able to recover from Leonora, in subrogation, the amount of rent that Rhonda was required to pay to Baden. 

c. Rhonda would be able to recover reimbursement of rent from Leonora only if Leonora assumed the lease.

d. Rhonda would legally be the one who is ultimately responsible for the rent.

106. Reanswer the previous question.

107. In the middle of her 5-year written lease, Rhonda found a better place to live and moved out of the old one. She has not paid any rent since then. Baden, her landlord, wants to know his options. Which of the following is not true under the traditional common-law rules?

a. Baden can let the premises lie vacant without making any effort to find a new tenant and still hold Rhonda for the full rent as it accrues.

b. Baden can relet the premises for Rhonda’s account and still hold her liable to the extent that the rent received from the new tenant is less than the agreed rent under the lease signed by Rhonda.

.

c. Rhonda could terminate her obligation to pay further rent by getting Baden to accept her proffered surrender.

d. Baden would have a duty to mitigate by making reasonable efforts to find a substitute tenant.

108. Reanswer the previous question.

109. Suppose that, instead of just moving out in the middle of her 5-year written lease, Rhonda assigned the lease to a co-worker without Baden’s consent. Under the traditional common law rules:

a. This action by Rhonda would be a violation of her lease if the lease contained a prohibition on subletting without the landlord’s consent.

b. If the lease prohibited the tenant from “subletting or assigning” without the landlord’s consent, Baden could withhold consent, but only if he has reasonable grounds for doing so.

c. If the landlord consents to the assignment by Rhonda to her co-worker, Rhonda will not be liable for rents coming due after the assignment.

d. None of the above.

110. Reanswer the previous question.

111. Suppose again that, instead of just moving out in the middle of her 5-year written lease, Rhonda assigned the lease to a co-worker.

a. Rhonda would cease to be liable for the reserved rent, but she would continue to be liable for rent based on privity of contract.

b. Rhonda would cease to be liable for rent based on privity of contract but she would continue to liable for rent based on privity of estate.

c. Rhonda’s co-worker would be liable for rent to the landlord only if the co-worker assumed the lease.

d. Rhonda’s co-worker would continue to be liable for reserved rent even after she re-assigned the lease to Cranmar, a person she found on Craig’s List, so the landlord would have three people to whom he could look to collect the rent.

112. Reanswer the previous question.

113. Harlan conveyed Blackacre “to Ace, Bruce and Crace and their heirs.” Under the usual modern presumption:

a. Ace, Bruce and Crace and their respective heirs would be tenants in common.

b. Ace, Bruce and Crace would be tenants in common.

c. Ace, Bruce and Crace would be joint tenants.

d. Ace, Bruce and Crace would be considered to hold jointly.

114. Reanswer the previous question.

115. Harlan conveyed Blackacre to Ace, Bruce and Crace. Assume that the three grantees were considered to be joint tenants. If Bruce died intestate:

a. Ace and Crace would each have an undivided 50% as tenants In common.

b. Ace and Crace would each have an undivided 50% as joint tenants.

c. Ace, Crace and Bruce’s heirs would each have an undivided 1/3 as tenants in common.

d. Ace, Crace and Bruce’s heirs would each have an undivided 1/3 as joint tenants.

116. Reanswer the previous question.

117. Harlan conveyed Blackacre to Ace, Bruce and Crace. Assume that the three grantees were considered to be joint tenants. If Bruce conveyed his interest to Ace and then died intestate:

a. Ace and Crace would each have an undivided 50% as tenants In common.

b. Ace would have an undivided 2/3 and Crace would have an undivided 1/3 as joint tenants. 

c. Ace would have an undivided 2/3 and Crace would have an undivided 1/3 as tenants in common. 

d. Ace would have an undivided 1/3 as joint tenant with Crace, who would also have an undivided 1/3; Ace would have another undivided 1/3 as tenant in common with himself and Crace.

118. Reanswer the previous question.

119. Several years ago Harlan conveyed Blackacre to Ace, Bruce and Crace. If Bruce has been in sole possession of the premises for the past several  years, and Ace and Crace have basically just allowed him to do so:

a. Under the majority rule Bruce would be liable to Ace and Crace for rent.

b. Ace and Crace could bring an ejectment action and remove Bruce from possession of all but 1/3 of Blackacre.

c. Bruce would normally be considered to be in adverse possession of the premises from the day that he first started holding sole occupancy of them.

d. If, someday in the future, Bruce refuses to  allow Ace and Crace to join him in possession, title by adverse possession could ripen in Bruce 10 years thereafter (if not earlier).

120. Reanswer the previous question.

121. Harlan conveyed Greenacre to Martin and Marcia, who happened to be husband and wife. In a state that recognizes the tenancy by the entirety:

a. Martin and Marcia would presumptively be tenants by the entirety.

b. Martin and Marcia could be tenants by the entirety, but only if the deed so specified.

c. On Marcia’s death, Martin would 50% owner as tenant in common with Marcia’s heirs.

d. On Marcia’s death, Martin would 50% owner as tenant by the entirety with Marcia’s heirs.

122. Reanswer the previous question.

123. In the preceding question, assume that some sole creditors of  Martin obtained a judgment against him for $145,000. In order to satisfy this judgment

a. The creditors could levy execution on Greenacre as an “entirety” in almost all of the states that recognize the tenancy by the entirety.

b. The creditors could levy execution on Martin’s interest Greenacre in almost all of the states that recognize the tenancy by the entirety.

c. The creditors could levy execution on Martin’s interest in Greenacre in some but not all of the states that recognize the tenancy by the entirety.

d. The creditors could not levy execution on Martin’s interest in Greenacre in any of the states that recognize the tenancy by the entirety.

124. Reanswer the previous question.

125. Now assume that Harlan conveyed Greenacre to Martin in a community property state. Although Harlan did not know it, Martin was married to Marcia at the time of the conveyance.

a. Greenacre would be owned 50-50 by Martin and Marcia if Martin bought the property solely with money that he had inherited from his mother.

b. Greenacre would be owned 50-50 by Martin and Marcia if Martin bought the property solely with money that he had earned working at a downtown department store.

c. Greenacre would be owned solely by Martin if Martin bought the property solely with money that he had earned working at a department store in the Mall.

d. All of the above.

126. Reanswer the previous question.

127. Tennyson owns a suburban house and lot. A railroad formerly ran behind his property, separating it from that of his neighbor in back. For a number of years now, no trains have run on this line and, in fact, the tracks have been removed by the railroad company. Research at the recording office shows that, over 100 years ago, the farmer who owned the area had delivered a deed to the railroad granting “a right of way 25’ wide and running from [east] to [west]. The deed also stated: “This right of way is granted for railroad purposes.” Tennyson would like to make use of the portion of the 25’ strip behind his house. Most likely:

a. The railroad would have acquired an easement under the original deed from the farmer, and its incorporeal interest may well now be considered terminated by abandonment.

b. The railroad would have acquired a fee simple under the original deed from the farmer, and its estate in the land would still be in effect.

c. The railroad would have acquired an easement under the original deed from the farmer, and its estate in the land would still be in effect.

d. The railroad would have acquired an executed parole license under the original deed from the farmer, and its license could now be revoked by Tennyson.

128. Reanswer the previous question.

129. Maxwell owned land near the ocean but did not have direct access to the beach. His neighbor across the street had property that was right on the beach. In exchange for $300, the neighbor delivered a deed granting Maxwell “a right to use the pathway along the fence at the edge of my property to pass between the public street and the beach.” But the deed added that “this right shall be personal to Maxwell.”

a. In light of the latter clause about “personal,” the interest received by Maxwell could be an easement in gross.

b. In light of the latter clause about “personal,” the interest received by Maxwell could be a license, in which case it would be revocable by the neighbor at any time.

c. If the latter clause about “personal” had not been in the deed, Maxwell would presumptively have received an easement appurtenant.

d. All of the above.

130. Reanswer the previous question.

131. A portion of Maxwell’s property lies between his neighbor’s house and the nearest utility pole. When the neighbor signed up for cable TV service, it was necessary to install a new pole, and the neighbor asked Maxwell if he could install the pole on a corner of Maxwell’s property. Maxwell said “sure,” and the pole was installed, at a cost to the neighbor of about $700. Now, however, after his wife backed into the pole twice with the family car, Maxwell wants the pole removed. Having gone to law school for a portion of a year, he announced to the neighbor: “Your license is revoked!”:

a. The neighbor may well be able to claim a right to keep the pole in place on the ground that he has received an executed parole license.

b. The neighbor may well be able to claim a right to keep the pole in place on the ground that he has received an easement by estoppel.

c. Both of the above.

d.  Because the agreement for the pole was not put in writing, the neighbor could not have acquired an irrevocable right to use Maxwell’s land for purposes of the pole.

132. Reanswer the previous question.

Facts for Jacobs-Kemper questions. Jacobs owned a piece of country land with a septic field built in the ground to the east of his house. Being underground, the septic field is not visible to a surface observer. When Jacobs sold the eastern part of his property to Kemper, the new boundary line ran through the septic field, with about half of it in the portion of the land conveyed to Kemper. This fact was discovered when Kemper was digging to lay a foundation for a planned new garage.

133. Kemper demands that the septic field be removed from his property, but doing so would cause considerable expense to Jacobs. 

a. Jacobs could not claim an easement by implied reservation from prior use because there was no quasi-easement.

b. If Jacobs claims an easement by implied reservation from prior use (as opposed to an easement by necessity) he would not have to show that the easement was necessary.

c. If Jacobs claims an easement by implied reservation from prior use, he would now have no trouble meeting the requirement that the use be apparent because, obviously, Kemper now knows about the septic field.

d. If Jacobs claims an easement by implied reservation from prior use, he would have to show that the easement was necessary—in some states strictly necessary.

134. Reanswer the previous question.

135. Suppose in the preceding question that more than 10 years elapsed after the conveyance before Kemper tried to build his garage. It was only then that Kemper became aware of the problem with the septic field. 

a. Jacobs probably could not claim an easement by prescription for the septic field because his use of Kemper’s land over the 10-year period was permissive.

b. Jacobs probably could not claim an easement by prescription for the septic field because his use of Kemper’s land over the 10-year period was not open and notorious.

c. Jacobs probably could not claim an easement by prescription for the septic field because his use of Kemper’s land did not meet the requirement of “hostile.”

d. Jacobs probably could successfully claim an easement by prescription to keep the septic field in place because he has seemingly met all of the requirements for easements by prescription.

136. Reanswer the previous question.

137. Suppose that Jacobs and Kemper reach a settlement on the septic field, which is allowed to remain in place. A couple of years later, Jacobs buys some wooded acres located on the other side of his property. Because his present house is a bit ramshackle, he wants to tear it down and build his dream home in the woods on the new acreage. To save money, however, he plans to connect the new house to the existing septic field. 

a. If the physical burden on the septic field would be exactly the same with the new house as with the present house, Kemper can have no objection to Jacobs’ plan to use it with the new house.

b. Even if the physical burden on the septic field would be somewhat greater with the new house, Kemper can have no objection to Jacobs’ plan if the field is nonetheless perfectly capable of handling any additional burden.

c. Even if the physical burden on the septic field would be exactly the same with the new house as with the present house, Kemper can legally object to Jacobs’ plan to use the septic field for the house on the new acreage.

d. Jacobs would not be permitted to make any changes in the way the easement is used (such as with a different house) without getting the agreement of Kemper, irrespective of whether the changes have any effects on the legal or physical burden of the easement.

138. Reanswer the previous question.

In answering the following TRUE/FALSE questions, assume (unless otherwise specified) that, at the times of conveyance, O is an owner in fee simple absolute, and that every named party is alive and unmarried. Remember that the conveyances are to be interpreted as set forth in the last two paragraphs on the instruction page. Assume that all life estates end at the death of the named life tenant. When you see words appropriate for a defeasible fee simple, assume that the words of conveyance also include whatever additional words (such as words of reverter or re-entry) that may be required by law in order to create the defeasible estate.

139. O conveyed  “to A for life, then to B and her heirs.” B has a remainder.

140. O conveyed  “to A for life, then to B and her heirs.” B’s heirs have an executory interest.

141. O conveyed  “to A for life, then to A’s heirs.” A’s heirs have a contingent remainder.

142. O conveyed  “to A for life, then to B and her heirs if B becomes a ballerina.” O has a reversion.

143. O conveyed “to A for life and then, one month after A’s death, to B and her heirs.” B has a remainder.

144. O conveyed “to A and her heirs so long as the land is used as a farm, then to B and her heirs.” B has a possibility of reverter.

145. O conveyed “to A and his heirs.” The heirs of A receive a contingent remainder under this conveyance.  

146. O conveyed “to A and his heirs.” The heirs of A receive nothing under this conveyance.  

147. O conveyed “to A for life, then to B and her heirs if B attends A’s funeral.” B has a contingent remainder.

148. O conveyed  “to A for life, then to B and her heirs.” O has nothing.

149. O conveyed “to A for two years, then to B and her heirs.” B may be properly said to have a vested remainder.

150. O conveyed “to A for two years, then to B and her heirs if B becomes a ballerina.” B may be properly said to have a contingent remainder.

151. O conveyed “to A for life, then to B and her heirs if B becomes a ballerina after the death of A.” B may be properly said to have an executory interest.

152. O conveyed “to A for two years, then to B and her heirs if B becomes a ballerina before the end of the two-year term.” B may be properly said to have a contingent remainder.

153. O conveyed “to A for life.” O is much older then A. The conveyance results in a possibility of reverter.

154. O conveyed “to A for life, then to B and her heirs, but if C survives A, then to C and her heirs.” B has a future interest that is vested subject to divestment. 

155. O conveyed “to A for life, then to B and her heirs if B marries C.”  B has a contingent remainder (at least).

156. O conveyed “to A and his heirs beginning after the time of my death.” The conveyance creates an executory interest. 

157. O conveyed “to A for life, then to B for life, and then six days after B’s death, to C and her heirs.” B has a remainder.

158. O conveyed “to A and his heirs as long as Yellowstone remains a national park.” O has a possibility of reverter.

159. O conveyed “to A for life, then to B and her heirs if B survives A by at least one year.” B has an executory interest.

160. O conveyed “to A for life, then to B and her heirs if B does not survive A.”  B has a contingent remainder.

161. O conveyed “to A for life, then to B and her heirs if B marries C.” O has a reversion.

162. O conveyed “to A for life, then to B and her heirs if B marries C.”  B has (at least) an executory interest. 

163. O conveyed “to A and his heirs until Yellowstone ceases to be a national park.” O has a right of re-entry.

164. O conveyed “to A and the heirs of his body.” In states that still recognize the fee tail, this estate would not be inherited if, at A’s death, his sole heirs were one brother and one cousin.

165. O conveyed “to A and his heirs as long as the house be kept painted white with green shutters.” A has a fee simple determinable.

166. O conveyed “to A and his heirs on the condition that the premises be kept as a nature preserve and open to the public.” O has a right of re-entry. 

167. O conveyed “to A for life, then to B and her heirs if B survives A by at least one year.” O has a reversion.

168. O conveyed “to A for life, then to B and her heirs, but if C survives A by at least one year, then to C and her heirs.” C has a future interest that is vested subject to divestment. 

169. O conveyed “to A for life, then to B and her heirs if B marries C after the death of A.” B has an executory interest. 

170. O conveyed “to A for life, and then to the heirs of B.” B is living but childless. This conveyance creates a contingent remainder.

171. O conveyed “to A for life, and then to the heirs of B” (a person recently deceased). This conveyance creates a vested remainder.

172. O conveyed “to A for life, and then one day after A’s death to the children of B.” B is living but childless. This conveyance creates a contingent remainder.

173. O conveyed “to A for 5 years, then to the heirs of B” (a living person). This conveyance creates a remainder.

174. O conveyed “to A for 5 years, then to the heirs of B” (a living person). This conveyance creates an executory interest.

175. O conveyed “to A for life, then to B and her heirs, but if C survives A by at least one year, then to C and her heirs.” B has a future interest that is vested subject to divestment. 

176. O conveyed “to A as long as he desires to remain living on the land.” The more modern tendency is to interpret this conveyance as creating tenancy at will, rather than a determinable life estate.

<end of examination>
